
NOTICE

OF

MEETING

HIGHWAYS, TRANSPORT AND 
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY PANEL
will meet on

TUESDAY, 6TH DECEMBER, 2016

At 5.30 pm

in the

DESBOROUGH 2 & 3 - TOWN HALL, 

TO: MEMBERS OF THE HIGHWAYS, TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY PANEL

COUNCILLORS HARI SHARMA (CHAIRMAN), JESSE GREY (VICE-CHAIRMAN), 
MALCOLM BEER, MARIUS GILMORE, MAUREEN HUNT, PAUL LION AND 
JULIAN SHARPE 

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
COUNCILLORS DAVID EVANS, DAVID HILTON, LYNNE JONES, WESLEY RICHARDS, 
DEREK SHARP, JOHN STORY, SIMON WERNER AND LYNDA YONG

Karen Shepherd - Democratic Services Manager - Issued: 28 November 2016

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 
web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Wendy Binmore 01628 796251

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly 
by the nearest exit.  Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts.  Congregate in the Town Hall 
Car Park, Park Street, Maidenhead (immediately adjacent to the Town Hall) and do not re-enter the building until told 
to do so by a member of staff.

Recording of Meetings – The Council allows the filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings. This 
may be undertaken by the Council itself, or any person attending the meeting. By entering the meeting room you are 
acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this recording will be available for public viewing on 
the RBWM website. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the Democratic 
Services or Legal representative at the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


AGENDA

PART I
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO

1.  APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.
 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any Declarations of Interest.
 

5 - 6

3.  MINUTES

To confirm the Part I Minutes of the previous meeting.
 

7 - 10

4.  CHARTERS SCHOOL, SUNNINGDALE - WALKING & CYCLING 
ROUTES

To receive and consider the above report.
 

To 
Follow

5.  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

To consider passing the following resolution:-
“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting whilst discussion 
takes place on item 6 on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 1 and 3 of part I of Schedule 
12A of the Act".

 



PART II - PRIVATE MEETING

ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 
NO

6.  DELIVERING DIFFERENTLY IN OPERATIONS & CUSTOMER 
SERVICES - HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORT SERVICES

To receive and consider the above report.
 

To 
Follow





MEMBERS’ GUIDANCE NOTE 
 

DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS 
 
 

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (DPIs) 
 
 
DPIs include: 
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any 
expenses occurred in carrying out member duties or election expenses. 

 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed 
which has not been fully discharged. 

 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority. 

 Any license to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in 
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest. 

 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where  
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, 
and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class belonging to the relevant person exceeds one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS 
This is an interest which a reasonable fair minded and informed member of the public would 
reasonably believe is so significant that it harms or impairs your ability to judge the public 
interest. That is, your decision making is influenced by your interest that you are not able to 
impartially consider only relevant issues.   
 
DECLARING INTERESTS 
If you have not disclosed your interest in the register, you must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as you are aware that you have a DPI or  
Prejudicial Interest.  If you have already disclosed the interest in your Register of Interests 
you are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.  
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the 
item but  must not take part in discussion or vote at a meeting. The term ‘discussion’ 
has been taken to mean a discussion by the members of the committee or other body 
determining the issue.  You should notify Democratic Services before the meeting of your 
intention to speak. In order to avoid any accusations of taking part in the discussion or vote, 
you must move to the public area, having made your representations.  
 
If you have any queries then you should obtain advice from the Legal or Democratic Services 
Officer before participating in the meeting. 
 
If the interest declared has not been entered on to your Register of Interests, you must notify 
the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.  
 
 
 

5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGHWAYS, TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
PANEL

TUESDAY, 22 NOVEMBER 2016

PRESENT: Councillors Hari Sharma (Chairman), Jesse Grey (Vice-Chairman), 
Malcolm Beer, Marius Gilmore, Maureen Hunt, Paul Lion and Julian Sharpe

Officers: Wendy Binmore and Simon Fletcher and Naomi Markham

APOLOGIES 

None.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

None.

MINUTES 

RESOLVED: That the Part I minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 25 October 
2016 be approved.

A REVIEW OF ACCESS ARRANGEMENTS AT STAFFERTON WAY CIVIC 
AMENITY SITE 

Naomi Markham, Waste Strategy Manager introduced the report and directed Members to the 
following key points:

 The Council wanted to introduce a permit scheme for the Maidenhead Civic Amenity 
Site to limit access to non-residents. Only those that lived within in the Borough would 
be able to access it.

 A scheme would be implemented for business users which covered vans, lorries and 
sign written vehicles so that those that were permitted to use the site, still could.

 The scheme was a response to what was happening in neighbouring borough’s that 
had already introduced a permit scheme.

 RBWM residents would still be able to use the amenity site in Surrey if they lived in the 
south of the Borough as it was too far to travel to Maidenhead to use the Borough’s 
Civic Amenity Site.

 16% of people using the Civic Amenity Site were not from within the Borough, and 
since the neighbouring local authorities had introduced a permit scheme to access 
their Civic Amenity Site, there might be a rise in that percentage trying to use the 
Borough’s.

 The scheme would help track where waste was coming from.
 Would also act as a checks and balance on waste.
 During the survey carried out to monitor where waste was coming from, it highlighted 

areas such as Aylesbury and Swindon which were significant distances away from the 
Civic Amenity Site.

 16% of non-residents waste equates to approximately £94,000 per year cost to 
resident tax payers.

 If the Borough introduced the permit scheme, it would cut out 16% of waste which 
would also make the site quieter for residents to use and will also save the Borough 
money.

 The scheme would be implemented in April 2017.

7

Agenda Item 3



 No set up costs had been worked out as the type of scheme to be implemented had 
not been decided on yet.

 Some ideas for how the scheme would work included the use of advantage cards to 
access the site which would have a very low cost of implementation.

 The cost of implementing the scheme would not cost nearly as much as was being 
saved by prevent non-residents of the Borough from using the site.

 The Waste Strategy Manager confirmed it was possible to bring a paper back to Panel 
for scrutiny prior to a final decision on the scheme was due to be made.

 Fly tipping was already an issue in the Borough and was costing the Borough in the 
region of £140,000 per year to clear it.

 The permits would not limit what could be accepted at the Civic Amenity Site from 
residents unless they were in a van carrying hard core, the limit for hard core is six 
bags per month. There were no plans to charge residents for domestic weight and 
there were no limits to how many times residents could access the site or to how much 
residents to take to the site.

 A permit for a van would take two days but other permits would be obtained by 
residents before they were needed so it could be displayed in their car window. If a 
resident did not have a permit and turned up at the site without one, they would need 
to show proof of identification and address and they would still be able to use the site.

 The Waste Strategy Manager would be looking at it being a one time use  permit for 
vans. She was also testing other ideas for best practice to make the scheme as 
straight forward and simple for residents as possible.

 If residents in the south of the Borough used the Civic Amenity Site in Bagshot, they 
would still be able to continue using it as the Borough paid for RBWM’s portion of its 
use.

 Veolia had confirmed that other councils were using hand held technology so that out 
of Borough/non-resident users were either turned away from using the Civic Amenity 
Site or, they were charged to use it. The Lead Member was keen to address the 
Borough’s own residents first before looking at how to manage out of Borough and 
non-residents for the use of the site.

 The site did accept trade waste but in a different area of the site to domestic waste. If 
using the site for trade waste, users had to go to a weigh bridge and pay to use it.

 The permit scheme for the Civic Site were for residents waste only, so no trade waste 
would be accepted. There would be no changes to the way the Borough dealt with and 
accepted trade waste.

 The Waste Strategy Manager confirmed the costs of disposing of asbestos was 
included within the contract with Veolia.

The Chairman stated that it was necessary to keep the scheme as simple as possible for 
residents. He agreed with the proposals but wanted the scheme kept as straight forward as 
possible for residents to dispose of their waste. Cllr Lion commented that most residents had 
an advantage card so it made sense to use that as the first port of call for the scheme as 
would keep costs to a minimum.

Cllr Sharpe suggested carrying out a further survey following other local authorities now 
charging non-residents for using their Civic Amenity Sites to see if the 16% non-resident use 
of the Boroughs site had risen. The Waste Strategy Manager confirmed that the survey cost 
the council approximately £1,500 to carry out.

Cllr Beer stated that the cost to the council of non-resident waste was £94,000 but, the KPI 
was only £55,000; he felt the KPI should be higher than that. The Waste Strategy Manager 
confirmed that the KPI of £55,000 was only for the first year of the scheme and accounted for 
the costs of implementation. 

 Action – Figures from the scheme to be reviewed after the scheme has been set up.

The Waste Strategy Manager confirmed that the firm that run the Civic Amenity Site would 
‘meet and greet’ users at the gate to direct people to the correct area for disposal of their 

8



waste while also checking permits and if they were authorised to use the site. The meet and 
greet staff would also be able to encourage recycling of certain waste instead of it all going to 
landfill.

Cllr Sharpe suggested the scheme should be widely communicated to residents and 
businesses in the Borough through Around the Royal Borough publication and over a period of 
time to help get the message out. Cllr Beer felt it was unnecessary to run the survey again as 
it was a lot of money to show something which seemed obvious; that when other authorities 
starting charging non-residents to use their Civic Amenity Sites, the use of non-residents at 
the Borough’s Civic Amenity Site would rise. Simon Fletcher, Strategic Director of Operations 
stated the fear was that if it was not already happening, people were running out of places to 
take their rubbish without being charged so they were likely to take in to the Borough’s Civic 
Amenity Site as there were no charges in place just yet.

Cllr Hunt stated due to the Green Belt, if people did not have permits or, they were from 
outside of the Borough, it would be easier for them to fly-tip than to take it to a Civic Amenity 
Site. There were a lot of rural roads that were easy for people to dump their rubbish without 
being seen. She added the cost of retrieving fly-tipped rubbish was being paid by residents. 
Press releases were issued but it was difficult to get articles into parish publications; but 
parishes needed notification of press releases so they had time to include them in their 
publication. The Strategic Waste Manager confirmed there was a marketing professional 
within her team that she would pass on the parish publications deadlines to so that press 
releases could align and be included to help tackle fly-tipping in the Borough.

 Action – the Strategic Waste Manager to look into including a flyer or leaflet in with the 
Council Tax statements about fly-tipping and the possible permit scheme.

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the Panel endorsed the recommendations to Cabinet 
with the addition of the following recommendation:

 To make it clear that trade waste is continued to be handled and charged 
separately from this scheme.

The meeting, which began at 6.30 pm, finished at 5.40 pm

CHAIRMAN……………………………….

DATE………………………………..........

9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes

